



Searching the grey literature to access research on illicit drug use, blood borne virus, and coverage of interventions among people who are incarcerated



Searching the grey literature to access research on illicit drug use, blood borne virus, and coverage of interventions among people who are incarcerated.

Sophie Ottaviano, Louisa Degenhardt, & Thomas Santo Jr

Technical report number: 343

Funded by: NHMRC Advancing the health of people who use drugs: hepatitis C and drug dependence (ASCEND) program grant (RG171483)

This work is copyright. You may download, display, print and reproduce this material in unaltered form only (retaining this notice) for your personal, non-commercial use or use within your organisation.

All other rights are reserved. Requests and enquiries concerning reproduction and rights should be addressed to the National Drug and Alcohol Research Centre, UNSW Sydney, NSW 2052, Australia

Table of contents

Executive Summary	4
Acknowledgements	4
1. Introduction	5
1.1 What is grey literature?	5
1.2 Why use grey literature?	5
2. Methodology	5
2.1 Searching for grey literature	5
2.2 National Criminal Justice Organisations/Governing Bodies	5
3. Databases	7
4. Organisations and Ongoing Studies/Publications	10
4.1 Global	10
4.2 Asia	12
4.3 Australasia & Pacific	13
4.4 Europe	13
4.5 Africa	16
4.6 The Americas	16
5. HIV and Harm Reduction Organisations	18
5.1 Global	18
5.2 Asia	19
5.3 Australasia & Pacific	19
5.4 Europe	20
5.5 Africa	21
5.6 The Americas	22
6. National Criminal Justice Organisations/Governing Bodies	23
6.1 Asia	23
6.2 Australasia & Pacific	23
6.3 Europe	23
6.4 Africa	24
6.5 The Americas	24
7 References	26

Executive Summary

This technical report outlines websites associated with various databases and organisations that could provide grey literature resources related to illicit drug use, blood borne virus, and coverage of interventions amongst people who are incarcerated.

Acknowledgements

This technical report accessed a different iteration of this resource as a starting point. Many thanks to those who contributed to this edition: Lucy Tran, Thomas Nicholas & Louisa Degenhardt.

This work has been supported by NHMRC Advancing the health of people who use drugs: hepatitis C and drug dependence (ASCEND) program grant (RG171483).

1. Introduction

1.1 What is grey literature?

Grey literature is material that is not formally published by commercial publishers or peer reviewed journals and is produced by institutions, academics, organisations, and government agencies (Auger, 1998). It includes reports, unpublished data, conference proceedings, dissertations, policy and other documents and personal correspondence (Hopewell et al., 2007).

The advancement of the internet has made grey literature easily accessible electronically (e.g. PDF files and online data tables). Many organisations, institutions and agencies make grey literature available on their websites.

There are also several grey literature databases which can be searched for references of data sources. Authors are often willing to provide the document of interest upon request if the source is unavailable online.

1.2 Why use grey literature?

Peer reviewed literature and grey literature sources operate in relatively separate spheres with unique information in each (Christensen et al., 2008). It is sometimes imperative to supplement information from peer reviewed literature with the information rich grey literature sources. Grey literature provides additional information not or not yet available in peer reviewed literature due to publication lag and publication bias.

2. Methodology

2.1 Searching for grey literature

The previous technical report 'Searching the grey literature to access research on illicit drug use, HIV and viral hepatitis: an update' was used as a starting resource (Tran et. al., 2020). Every website linked was searched using the 'control find' or search function. The following search terms were used and, if applicable, were translated into the national language of the country before searching. The first page of results was interrogated to determine whether relevant reports/data/documentation were available on the prison population. This was noted in an excel spreadsheet, including the term that was used to find the information.

Search terms: prison criminal justice jail correctional detention incarcerated incarceration rate incarceration

2.2 National Criminal Justice Organisations/Governing Bodies

The World Prison Brief website was referred to as a source for each country's criminal justice websites (CJW) (World Prison Brief, n.d.).

If no CJW was noted, a country search was performed using the advanced search function on google. The country was chosen from the region section and in the 'any of these words' section, the terms

in section 2.1 were used. The first page of results was interrogated to find the country's CJW. If there was no CJW found, the country's broader government body website was used. This was noted down in an excel spreadsheet.

The CJW (or government website) was copied into the 'site or 'domain section' of the advanced search function on google. In the 'any of these words' section, the following string of words were added (if the website was not in English, these words were first translated into the national language before pasting). The first page of results were interrogated to find any relevant prison information. This was noted in an excel spreadsheet.

Search terms:

hiv hepatitis hcv hbv bbv inject needle nsp intravenous pwid condom opioid methamphetamine stimulant amphetamine methadone buprenorphine ost transgender msm naloxone

3. Databases

Australian Data Archive (ADA) http://ada.anu.edu.au/ Cumulative Index to Nursing and	Database with >600 organisations and web resources. Largely peer-reviewed literature. Content: Alcohol, Drugs and Tobacco Web links Australian National University — Australian national data. Content: Must register to access data Comprehensive resource for nursing and allied health literature. Largely peer-reviewed literature.
http://ada.anu.edu.au/ Cumulative Index to Nursing and	Content: • Must register to access data Comprehensive resource for nursing and allied health literature. Largely
_	
Allied Health Literature (CINAHL) http://health.ebsco.com/products/t he- cinahl-database	
Global Health Database home page: https://www.ebscohost.com/academic/g l obal-health	Database focusing on public health practice and research. Available through CAB Direct, Ovid, ISI, EBSCO, DataStar and Dialog, DIMDI
Global Health Data Exchange (GHDx) http://ghdx.healthdata.org/	University of Washington Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation's database of surveys, censuses, vital statistics, and other health-related data. Can search by risk factors and disease causes by country.
ADF Search http://primoapac01.hosted.exlibrisgroup.co m/primo library/libweb/action/search.do ? vid=ADF	Australian Drug Foundation database. Providing information to prevent harmful drug use
Drug Policy Alliance http://www.drugpolicy.org/library	Database with a focus on drugs and alcohol Content: Can search by 'popular' category Most links click through to Lindesmith library below
Lindesmith Library http://geniehost23.inmagic.com/InmagicGenie/opac.aspx?QueryScreen=simple o p ac search&xm=1%2c1&xm=1&xe=2%2c 2 &xe=2 2 ac search&xm=1/2	

Database Link	Comments
The McGill Library Global Health Resource Guide https://libraryguides.mcgill.ca/global-health-resources	Created as a wiki using MediaWiki software to promote communication and collaboration across McGill University on global health. Content: Links to databases, journals, conferences & events, government documents, statistics & data.
National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism https://www.niaaa.nih.gov/	Portal to access databases, survey findings (e.g., NESARC III), journals and alcohol-focused clinical trials.
New York Academy of Medicine http://www.nyam.org/library	Extensive collection of medical information. Content: Good for treatment admissions and hospital statistics Peer reviewed literature mainly
PAIS International http://www.proquest.com/products- services/pais-set-c.html	Database of journal articles, books, statistical and government documents, research and conference reports, grey literature and more.
Project CORK Institute http://www.dartmouth.edu/~cork/datab a se.html	Database providing substance abuse and alcoholism information. Content: Requires a terminal-emulation helper application (e.g., NSCA Telnet) to search the database Peer reviewed literature mainly
PsycEXTRA http://www.apa.org/psycextra/ Schaffer Library of Drug Policy http://www.druglibrary.org/schaffer/ind e x.htm	Database of grey literature. A companion to PsycINFO database but no coverage overlap. A library with resources on various aspects of drug policy.
Science.gov: USA.gov for science https://www.science.gov/	Search engine for US federal science information.
Virtual Health Library (VHL) Regional Portal https://bvsalud.org/en/	Collaboration between Pan American Health Organisation (PAHO), World Health Organization for the Americas and BIREME, a Pan American Health Organisation Specialised Centre. Content: Not all information is in English Links to other portals such as Caribbean Public Health Agency (CARPHA) Evidence Portal and LILACS
Web of Science ISI Proceedings http://wokinfo.com/products tools/mult idisciplinary/webofscience/cpci/	Requires a subscription to access documents. References and abstracts from scientific meetings, conferences, symposia, conventions and workshops.
World Wide Web (WWW) Virtual Library: Public Health Homepage http://ldb.org/vl/	Provides resources to various areas within the public health domain. Content: Index of public health sites and resources Can be searched by geographical location or by selected topics
World Prison Brief https://www.prisonstudies.org/	Online databases with information on prison systems around the world

Database Link	Comments
US Department of State: Country Reports on Human Rights Practices https://www.state.gov/reports/2021- country-reports-on-human-rights- practices/	Reports on all countries receiving assistance from US Department of State and United Nations Members. Includes reports on prisons for each country.
Bureau of Justice Statistics https://bjs.ojp.gov/library/publications/p risoners-2021-statistical-tables	American Justice Statistics including data analysis tools and annual prisoner reports.
EuroPris https://www.europris.org/epis/organisati ons/	Information on each country in the European prison system and links to country websites.
Global Detention Project https://www.globaldetentionproject.org/	Promotes human rights of people who have been detained. Includes data and analysis of international prison systems.
Alexander Street https://alexanderstreet.com/products/mass-incarceration-and-prison-studies	The database provides a rare breadth of study for students to investigate both crucial global trends in mass incarceration, and the detailed prison infrastructure of specific countries. The collection examines prison populations and their relationship to major prison labor systems; and how correctional facilities may serve as central service providers for those with mental health issues.
Peer Reviewed Literature Databases	
Cochrane HIV/AIDS Group https://cidg.cochrane.org/	Systematic reviews on HIV/AIDS treatment, prevention and care.
PubMed http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed	US National Library of Medicine National Institutes of Health. Database of biomedical literature. Peer-reviewed literature mainly. Includes online books and reviews.
Scientific Electronic Library Online (SciELO): Public Health https://scielosp.org/	Can browse journals by themes.
SCOPUS https://www.scopus.com/search/form.u ri ?display=basic	Database can be used to identify research output from a specified organisation.
Web of Science https://www.webofknowledge.com	Database of high impact journals. Content: Indexed by citations
ZETOC http://zetoc.jisc.ac.uk//	Access to the British Library's electronic table of content and PubMed.

4. Organisations and Ongoing Studies/Publications

4.1 Global

Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Harm Reduction International	https://hri.global/	Collates data and provide advocacy to promote global harm reduction and drug policy reform. Search publications for prison focused reports.
National Drug and Alcohol Research Centre	https://ndarc.med.unsw.edu.au/	Conducts research on key emerging drug and alcohol issues in Australia and globally. Content: - Prisoner health
International Narcotics Control Board	https://www.incb.org/	Monitors the implementation of United Nation's drug control conventions. Aims to ensure adequate supply of medicinal drugs and works towards reduction of the production of illicit drugs. Content: - Information on the global state of drug control, including in prison settings
International Association of Substance Abuse Librarians and Information Sepcialists	https://salis.org/	International association responsible for the exchange and dissemination of drug and alcohol information. Content: - Includes relevant documents in prison settings
International Treatment Preparedness Coalition	https://itpcglobal.org/	International association responsible for the exchange and dissemination of drug and alcohol information. Content: - Includes relevant documents in prison settings
United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime (UNODC)	http://www.unodc.org https://dataunodc.un.org/	UNODC assists member states to control crime, terrorism, and illicit drugs. Conducts research, analysis and field-based activities. Information available by region. Search publications for specific health services available in prisons. Content:
	https://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/treatment-and-care/publications.html https://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/justice-and-prison-reform/cpcj-tools-prison-reform.html	 World drug report includes information no prisons/prisoners, as well as drug trafficking in prisons Publications on drug treatment and prevention, including information on prisons Crime prevention and criminal justice reform resources

Organisation	Website Link	Notes
	https://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/crimecon gress/about.html	
	https://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/commissi ons/CND/index.html	
	https://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/commissi ons/CCPCJ/index.html	
	https://www.unodc.org/unodc/en/commis sions/CCPCJ/PNI/institutes-UNAFEI.html	
	https://unicri.it/	
World Health Organisation	https://www.who.int/europe/home?v=wel	WHO is the directing and coordinating authority for health within the United Nations system. Content:
	https://www.who.int/data/gho	 Includes data on drug treatment in the criminal justice system publications on the response to the world drug problem covers all target populations, including prisoners
	https://www.who.int/teams/mental- health-and-substance-use/alcohol-drugs- and-addictive-behaviours/overview	
United Nations Statistics Division	https://unstats.un.org/home/nso_sites/	List of statistical institutes for each UN country
National Commission on Correctional Health Care	https://www.ncchc.org/	Journal of Correctional Health Care
Penal Reform International	https://www.penalreform.org/global- prison-trends-2022/	Global Prison Trend Report published annually. Includes information on health in prison and prison populations. Map on each country and how they implement Nelson Mandela/Bangkok rule conventions. Country level resources on healthcare in prisons.
International Committee Of The Red	https://www.icrc.org/en	
Cross	https://health-in-detention.icrc.org/	Articles and reports on conditions for detainees
Worldwide Prison Health Research &	https://wephren.tghn.org/	Reports and tools for healthcare in prison.

Organisation	Website Link	Notes	
Engagement Network (WEPHREN)			
Coalition for Global Hepatitis Elimination	https://www.globalhep.org/data- dashboards/national-hepatitis- elimination-profiles	Reports and analysis on prison population.	

4.2 Asia

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Asia-Pacific	HIV and AIDS Data Hub for	https://www.aidsdatahub.org/	Provision of data on HIV and AIDs in the Asia-Pacific Region.
	Asia-Pacific		
Central Asia	Eurasian Harm Reduction	https://harmreductioneurasia.org/dru	Clicking on each country provides a summary of the harm reduction services
	Association	g-policy/criminalization-costs-2	available in prison.
Hong Kong	Hong Kong Department of	https://www.aids.gov.hk/english/surv	Safeguards the health of the community through promoting, preventive,
	Health	eillance/off surreport.html	curative and rehabilitative services.
			Content:
			- HIV prevalence amongst prisoners
Hong Kong	Narcotics Division,	https://www.nd.gov.hk/en/index.html	Info on drug treatment and rehab statistics in prisons
	Security Bureau Hong		
	Kong		
Pakistan	Nai Zindagi Trust Pakistan	https://www.naizindagi.org/	Publication on programmes serving the needs of key populations (including
			prisoners)
Nepal	Recovering Nepal	www.recoveringnepal.org.np	A national network of drug users and drug service organizations in Nepal which
			are dedicated to improved health, human rights and well-beings of people who
			use drugs in Nepal.
			Content:
			- Includes information on prison inmates

4.3 Australasia & Pacific

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Australia	Australian Institute of Health and Welfare	https://www.aihw.gov.au/	Reports and data available by prison topic.
Australia	Australian Government: Attorney-General's Department	https://www.ag.gov.au/crime/federal- offenders/state-and-territory- corrective-services-websites	Each state prison system is linked.
Australia	Department of Health	http://www.health.gov.au	Prisoner health information
Australia	Australian Drug Foundation	https://adf.org.au/	Library provides free access to over 4000 journal articles along with books, websites and reports in the alcohol and other drugs field. Content: - Information and research available on drug use in prison
New Zealand	New Zealand Ministry of Health	https://www.health.govt.nz/nz- health-statistics/health-statistics-and- data-sets/prisoner-health-data-and- stats	Prisoner health data and statistics

4.4 Europe

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Europe	European Monitoring Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction	https://www.emcdda.europa.eu/ topics/prison_en	Reports and data available by prison topic.
United Kingdom	United Kingdom Office for Health Improvement and Disparities	https://www.gov.uk/health-and- social-care/drug-misuse-and- dependency	Report: Substance Misuse Treatment in Secure Settings (From National Statistics about Drug and Alcohol Misuse Treatment)
Austria	Federal Ministry: Social Affairs, Health, Care and Consumer Protection	https://www.sozialministerium.at/en.html	Publishes 'Drug Situation Reports' - surveyed Austrian prisons re inmates in opiate substitution treatment and HCV treatment
Belgium	Belgian Institute for Health	https://www.sciensano.be/en	Policy of prevention and harm reduction/drug use in prisons

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Bulgaria	Ministry of Health	https://www.mh.government.bg/bg/novini/aktualno/v-sofiiskiia-zatvor-shche-uchat-kak-da-se-paziat-o/	"HIV/AIDS Prevention and Control" Program in prisons? Ten prisoners in Sofia were trained on how to teach about the prevention of HIV/AIDS, blood and sexually transmitted infections in prisons
Czech Republic	Ministry of Health	https://www.drogy- info.cz/data/obj files/33369/107 3/VZdrogy2019 www fin.pdf	Addiction services and drug-injecting in prisons data
Denmark	Statens Serum Institut	https://en.ssi.dk/news/epi- news/2016/no-92016	A research institute under the Danish Ministry of Health. Aims to prevent and control infectious disease, congenital disorders and biological threats Content: - Acute and chronic hepatitis in Danish prison cases reported
United Kingdom	DrugWise	http://www.drugwise.org.uk/	UK database of information on drug use, treatment, drug-related health harms and drug policy. Content: - Range of articles of injecting drug use in prisons, sharing needles, HIV and other blood-borne viruses
United Kingdom	Department of Health and Social Care	https://www.gov.uk/government /organisations/public-health- england	Reports on a range of population level prison statistics including drug use and injecting drug use
France	French Monitoring Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction	https://en.ofdt.fr/publications/m emo-posters-maps/drug-use- prison-practices-consequences- and-responses-summary/	OFDT is a non-profit public interest group, including both government and non-government groups, which collects and analyses data. A branch of the EMCDDA. Content: - Reports on prison practices, consequences and responses, as well as national statistics on drug use in prisons sent to EMCDDA
France	French National Public Health Agency	https://www.santepubliquefranc e.fr/recherche/#search=prison	Various reports on TB, HIV and HCV prevalence among people who inject drugs in prisons
Germany	Robert Koch Institut	https://www.rki.de/SiteGlobals/Forms/Suche/en/serviceSucheFormen.html?nn=2418360&resourceld=2418188&input=2418360&pageLocale=en&searchEngineQueryString=prison&submit.x=0&submit.y=0	Central Federal institute for disease control and prevention. Applied and response- oriented research. Website available in German and English. Content: - Various reports on TB, HIV and Hepatitis B and C and opioid substitution therapy among people who inject drugs in prisons
Scotland	Health Protection Scotland	https://www.hps.scot.nhs.uk/sea rch?q=prison	Protects the Scottish public from being exposed to hazards which damage their health and to limit any impact on health when such exposures cannot be avoided.

0 1 10	1		
Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
			Content:
			- Preventing blood-borne viruses in prison settings, Hepatitis B & HIV
Scotland	Public Health Scotland –	https://www.isdscotland.org/sea	Reports on a range of population level prison statistics e.g. naloxone programs for
	Drug & Alcohol Misuse	rch/?q=prison	inmates and people in detention
Scotland	The Scottish Public	https://www.scotpho.org.uk/sear	Treatment for alcohol misuse, epidemiology and prevalence estimates
	Health Observatory	<u>ch</u>	
Italy	Instituto Superiore di	http://www.iss.it	Particular focus on HIV/AIDS and the general protection and regulation of prison
	Sanita		settings
Lithuania	Ministry of Health	http://sam.lrv.lt/	TB & HIV prison prevention programs
Netherlands	National Institute for	https://www.rivm.nl/en/search?s	Scabies and TB in over-crowded prisons
	Public Health & the	earch=prison	
	Environment		
Spain	Instituto de Salud Carlos	https://www.isciii.es/ layouts/15	TB in prison settings
	III	/osssearchresults.aspx#k=prisi%C	
		3%B3n#s=11	
Switzerland	Federal Office of Public	https://www.bag.admin.ch/bag/e	Controlling infectious diseases in prison
	Health	n/home/strategie-und-	
		politik/nationale-	
		gesundheitsstrategien/nationales	
		-programm-hiv-und-andere-	
		sexuell-uebertragbare-	
		infektionen/zielgruppe-mit-	
		erhoehtem-expositionsrisiko-	
		achse2/bekampfung-von-	
		infektionskrankheiten-im-	
		gefangnis.html	

4.5 Africa

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes					7	
.	NA: 1 CH III I	10. 10. 10. 10.		////	////	////	///	\geq	\equiv
Mauritius	Ministry of Health and Quality of Life	https://health.govmu.org/Pages/default.aspx	Information on harm reduction and other statistics of	nd to	son	ers		\equiv	Ξ

4.6 The Americas

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Canada	Correctional Service Canada	https://www.csc-scc.gc.ca/health/002006-index-en.shtml	Notes the availability of Needle Syringe Provision, Safe Injecting Facilities and Opioid Agonist Treatment (OAT) as well as the current number of those accessing OAT.
Canada	Canadian Centre on Substance Abuse	https://www.ccsa.ca/	Resources on drug use and indicators in prisons
Canada	Canadian Community Epidemiology Network on Drug Use	https://www.ccsa.ca/ccendu	CCENDU coordinates and facilitates the collection, organization, and dissemination of qualitative and quantitative information on drug use among the Canadian population at the local, provincial, and national levels. Most links follow through to CCSA. Content: - Two documents available on Naloxone availability in prison and misuse of opioids in Canadian Communities (incl. prisons)
Canada	Public Health Agency of Canada	https://www.canada.ca/en/public- health.html	Federal institution that is part of the Health portfolio. Focused on building an effective public health system in Canada. Content: - Information on harm reduction programs in prisons
United States	Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration	https://www.samhsa.gov/	Data collection and published reports on prison population.
United States	Bureau of Justice Statistics	https://bjs.ojp.gov	Data collection and published reports on prison population.

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
United States	Centers for Disease Control and Prevention	https://www.cdc.gov/correctionalhealth/	Provides information on correctional health, including data, scientific reports, recommendations and other materials
United States	National Centre on Addiction and Substance Abuse at Columbia University	https://drugfree.org/	CASA is a nationwide organisation which compiles relevant research information on the economic impact of substance abuse, also has tools for effective prevention and treatment strategies Content: - Resources on criminal justice involved people and drug abuse
United States	National Centre for Health Statistics	https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/index.htm	NCHS collects US national data on births, deaths and morbidity. Content: - National survey of prison health care
United States	Office on National Drug Control Policy	https://www.whitehouse.gov/ondcp	The ONDCP informs the National drug control programme by developing policy and targets. Content: - News reports and statements regarding drug abuse in prisons
United States	United States Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration	https://www.samhsa.gov/data/	Agency of the US Department of Health and Human Services. It is a services agency which works towards the prevention of mental illness and substance abuse in those who are at risk, and seeks to rehabilitate those who are already affected. Content: - Data on characteristics of criminal justice system referrals discharged from substance abuse treatment and facilities with specially design criminal justice programs
Latin America	Inter-American Drug Abuse Control Commission (CICAD)	http://www.cicad.oas.org/main/default_eng.asp	Country reports on prison conditions.

5. HIV and Harm Reduction Organisations

5.1 Global

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Global	AVERT	https://www.beintheknow.org/understanding- hiv-epidemic/community/hiv-and-prisoners	Avert is an international NGO based in the UK, working to avert HIV and AIDS worldwide. HIV and AIDS statistics by country. Content:
Global	FHI360	https://www.fhi360.org/	- General information on HIV in prisoners and links to useful resources Non-profit organisation working in research, education and services in family health. Research and field activities in more than 70 countries. Content: - Documents on prevention of disease in prisons
Global	Global Network of People Living with HIV	https://gnpplus.net/	Advocates to improve the quality of life of people living with HIV. Library divided into various categories. Including prisoner health.
Global	International Harm Reduction Development Program	https://www.opensocietyfoundations.org/voices/topics/criminal-justice	This initiative works to reduce harms associated with injecting drug use, such as HIV/AIDS. Includes information on prison reform.
Global	UNAIDS	https://www.aidsdatahub.org/resource/technical- brief-addressing-hiv-and-tb-prisons-pre-trial- detention-and-other-closed https://www.unaids.org/en	Content: - Information and data on HIV amongst prisoners, as well as prevention programs
Global	The Global Fund to Fight AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria	https://www.theglobalfund.org/en/	GFATM is a partnership between governments, civil society, the private sector and affected communities to represent a new approach to international health financing. Content: - Reports on prison settings
Global	United Nations Development Programme	https://www.undp.org/	UNDP assists developing countries to attract and use aid effectively. They encourage the protection of human rights, the empowerment of women, with a particular focus on HIV/AIDS. Content: - Reports on prison settings
Global	United Nations Population Fund	https://www.unfpa.org/	An international development agency which uses population data for policies and programmes. Content:

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes		//	\prod	\prod	\prod	\prod_{i}	1/1			\setminus		1	\setminus	()	(_
			- Reports on prison settings			\prod_{i}	\prod	\int	77	I	I/I	//	//	//	//	//		7	\equiv	

5.2 Asia

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Asia	Asia Foundation	https://asiafoundation.org/	The Asia Foundation supports programs that address the causes and consequences of violent conflict in Asia. Content: - Information on the prison setting
Asia	Asian Harm Reduction Network	https://idpc.net/	AHRN is regional information and support network created to link and support the programmes providing assistance to injecting drug users in Asia to prevent HIV transmission. Content: - Information on the prison setting
India	National AIDS Control Organisation	http://naco.gov.in/	AIDS control organisation of India. Committed to providing accurate, complete and consistant information regarding HIV. Content: - Operational guidelines on BBV intervention in prisons as well as sentinel surveillance in prisons
Nepal	National Center for AIDS and STD Control	https://www.ncasc.gov.np/	National estimates of HIV infections Content: - HIV/AIDS strategy incl. prisoners, epidemic updates, ART Services

5.3 Australasia & Pacific

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Australia	Kirby Institute UNSW	http://kirby.unsw.edu.au/	The Kirby Institute conducts research into HIV/AIDS, hepatitis B and C, and sexually transmissible infections. Research is conducted in Australia, but also Thailand and Cambodia. Training and input into health policy and programs are also carried out by NCHECR.
			 Content: - National prison entrant's BBV and risk behaviour survey reports as well as other seminars and information

5.4 Europe

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes
Eurasia ¹	Eurasian Harm Reduction Association	https://harmreductioneurasia.org/	The group is a flexible body, sharing a unified declogy of harm reduction and employs a diversity of policies and approaches. Has information on a wide range of different harm reduction programs. Content: - Country reports on incarcerated population and harm reduction in prisons
France	Conseil National du Sida	https://cns.sante.fr/	Offers its views on the problems faced by society because of AIDS and makes suggestions to the government. Content: - Reports on HIV and Hep C prevention, screening, and treatment in prison
Ireland	Health Protection Surveillance Centre	https://www.hpsc.ie/	Ireland's surveillance centre for communicable diseases. Content: - Guidelines for infectious disease control in prisons as well as infectious disease reports including HIV.
Romania	The National Coordinating Council of National HIV/AIDS Prevention and Control Programs, Sexually Transmitted Infections and Tuberculosis Control Programs	http://www.ccm.md/index.php/	National-level intersectoral structure that reflects the priorities and commitment of the Republic of Moldova. Content: - Evidence of programs in prison
United Kingdom	UK Harm Reduction Alliance	https://www.ukhra.org/index.html	The United Kingdom Harm Reduction Alliance UKHRA is a campaigning coalition of drug users, health and social care workers, criminal justice workers and educationalists that aims to put public health and human rights at the centre of drug treatment and service provision for drug users. Content: - Content on harm reduction and BBV prevention and treatment in prison

5.5 Africa

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes			
Ghana	Ghana AIDS Commission	https://www.ghanaids.gov.gh/	The objective of the Commission is to formulate policy on the HIV and AIDS epidemic and to direct and coordinate activities in response to HIV and AIDS. Content: - Paper on national situational needs assessment of BBV and Drug use in prisons			
Kenya	National AIDS Control Council	https://nsdcc.go.ke/	Mobilizes and coordinates resources for prevention of HIV transmission and provision of care and support to the infected and the affected in Kenya. Content: - Information on MAT in prisons and in Kenya AIDS Strategic Framework documents			
Zimbabwe	National AIDS Council	https://www.nac.org.zw/				
Nigeria	National Agency for the Control of HIV/AIDS	http://www.naca.gov.ng/				
South Africa	National AIDS Council	http://www.sanac.org.za/	A national body established to oversee and advise government on HIV and AIDS in South Africa. Control: - Documents including prison population including AIDS Strategy			

¹ Countries include: Estonia, Latvia Lithuania, Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Slovakia, Slovenia, Albania, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Macedonia, Montenegro, Romania, Serbia, Kosovo, Belarus, Moldova, Ukraine, Armenia, Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Tajikistan, Turkmenistan, Uzbekistan, Russia

5.6 The Americas

Country/Area	Organisation	Website Link	Notes		
United States	National Prevention Information Network	https://npin.cdc.gov/	NPIN is a US reference, referral and distribution service for information on HIV/AIDS and other diseases. Content: - Reports on prison settings		
United States	The Harm Reduction Coalition (HRC)	https://harmreduction.org/	Harm Reduction Coalition is a national advocacy and capacity building organization that promotes the health and dignity of individuals and communities impacted by drug use Content: - Documents on implementation of harm reduction in prisons		
Brazil	Departamento de Doenças de Condições Crônicas e Infecções Sexualmente Transmissíveis MINISTÉRIO DA SAÚDE	http://www.aids.gov.br	National Program on HIV, AIDS and hepatitis. Website in Portuguese. Content: - Documents on the control of BBV (esp. TB) for prisoners		
Canada	Canadian HIV/AIDs Legal Network	https://www.hivlegalnetwork.ca/site/?lang=en	Promotes human rights of people living with and vulnerable to HIV/AIDS, in Canada and internationally. Content: - Reports and documents on harm reduction in prison and prisoner health		
Costa Rica	Rica Costa Rica National Council for integral attention to HIV/AIDS. Http://www.conasida.go.cr/ http://www.conasida.go.cr/ http://www.conasida.go.cr/				
Jamaica	Ministry of Health	https://www.moh.gov.jm/	Programme is responsible for the coordination and implementation of the national HIV/AIDS response. Content: - HIV statistics including prisoners		

6. National Criminal Justice Organisations/Governing Bodies

6.1 Asia

Country	Website	Notes			
Philippines	https://www.bjmp.gov.ph/	Policies on HIV screening, ARV, transgender and LGBTQ inmates,			
Hong Kong	https://www.csd.gov.hk/tc_chi/home/home.html	Statistics on incarceration rate			
Taiwan	https://www.mjac.moj.gov.tw/	Statistics on incarceration rate			
Singapore	https://www.sps.gov.sg/	Statistics on incarceration rate in annual report			
		News articles on Hep C screening in prisons, HIV and TB screening, methadone			
Malaysia	https://www.prison.gov.my/ms/	treatment, Hep B Vaccinations			
Iran, Islamic Republic	https://www.prisons.ir/	Mentions treating prisoners with buprenorphine/methadone			

6.2 Australasia & Pacific

Country	Website	Notes		
Australia, ACT https://justice.act.gov.au/		Criminal justice statistical profile		
Australia, WA https://www.wa.gov.au/organisation/department-		Provides information and related resources on health services available		
	<u>of-justice</u>			
Australia, VIC	https://www.justice.vic.gov.au/	Prisoner and offender statistics		
New Zealand http://www.corrections.govt.nz		Evaluation of brief methamphetamine-focused interventions		

6.3 Europe

Country	Website	Notes
		Articles on HIV prevention, testing and ART initiation. Implements 13/15
		services recommended for prevention of HIV, TB and Hepatitis including
Moldova	http://anp.gov.md/	pharmacological opioid treatment and NSP.
Czech Republic	https://www.vscr.cz/	Article on HIV testing availability, pages on OST
		Info on National Health Program targeting HIV and TB, ART initiation, HIV
Romania	https://anp.gov.ro/	testing
Estonia	https://www.vangla.ee/	Info on healthcare in prisons incl. hepatitis and HIV testing
Poland	https://sw.gov.pl/	Articles on HCV testing, methadone treatment
Georgia	http://www.sps.gov.ge/	Information on prevention, diagnsosi and treatment of Hep C in prisons
Belgium	https://justice.belgium.be/fr/themes et dossiers/prisons	Information on prevention and treatment of drug addiction in prison

Country	Website	Notes
		Information on health care provision, including in drug-addicted prison
Portugal	https://dgrsp.justica.gov.pt/	populations
		Information on health and care services for inmates in prison Statistics
Norway	https://www.kriminalomsorgen.no/	available.
Ireland	https://www.irishprisons.ie/	Information on drug treatment and other healthcare services
France	http://www.justice.gouv.fr/	Document on epidemics in prisons including statistics
Northern Ireland (U.K.)	https://www.justice-ni.gov.uk/topics/prisons	Prison statistics
Albania	https://dpbsh.gov.al/	Information on methadone treatment in prison
Scotland (U.K.)	https://www.sps.gov.uk/	HCV Incidence/prev study, transgender population
Denmark	https://www.kriminalforsorgen.dk/	Notes addiction treatment and screening services
Finland	https://rikosseuraamus.fi/	Information on prevention of health problems, including HIV, vaccination
Serbia	http://www.uiks.mpravde.gov.rs/	Documents HepC, HIV prevention and treatment, Methadone substitution
	https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-	
England (U.K.)	<u>prison-service</u>	Offender management statistics
		Report on impact of detention on addiction, mental suffering, sex offenders,
Italy	https://www.giustizia.it/giustizia/	LGBT inmates

6.4 Africa

Country	Website	Notes
Lebanon	http://pa.justice.gov.lb/index.php	Sections on statistics and rehab/correctional programs but not loading in
		translation
Sierra Leone	https://slcs.gov.sl/	Inmate statistics
		Mention of improving access to HIV prevention, treatment and care alongside
		UNODC support. Links to UNODC report on strategic vision for Nigeria discussing
Nigeria	https://corrections.gov.ng/	this.
Malawi	https://www.mps.gov.mw/	HIV/Hep B screening, prevention, treatment and care program including rates
Seychelles	http://www.prisonservice.gov.sc/	Health care provision including methadone

6.5 The Americas

Country	Website	Notes
Jamaica	https://www.dcs.gov.jm/	Notes HIV/AIDS programme available, including testing and ART therapy
Commonwealth of		Info on buprenorphine treatment for opioid dependence, statistical report on
Puerto Rico	http://dcr.pr.gov/	offender risk behaviours (HIV) and profile of confined women
Saint Lucia	https://homeaffairs.govt.lc/	HIV testing statistics for broader Caribbean

Country	Website	Notes \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
Brazil	https://www.gov.br/depen/pt-br	Article on health screening including HIV, Hep B/C
Colombia	https://www.inpec.gov.co/	Info of Hep B Vaccination
Guatemala	https://dgsp.gob.gt	Some mention of HIV prevention and testing
Guyana	https://gps.moha.gov.gy/	Annual report with incarceration numbers
Panama	https://www.sistemapenitenciario.gob.pa/	Article on Hep A/B vaccine provision
Venezuela	https://www.mppsp.gob.ve/	Articles on HIV testing and hepatitis vaccination
		Study to identify Risk Behaviors and HIV/AIDS Prevention Needs in Drug Addiction
		Treatment Centers and report on psychoactive substances associated with drug
El Salvador	https://www.seguridad.gob.sv/	dependence in persons deprived of liberty
	https://www.statcan.gc.ca/en/subjects-	
Canada	start/crime and justice/correctional services	Correctional statistics
		Evaluation and management of BBVs, transgender inmates, as well as inmate
United States	https://www.bop.gov/	statistics
		HIV statistics, transgender populations, Hepatitis testing and treatment, drug
United States	https://bjs.ojp.gov/	use/dependance/abuse statistics

7. References

Auger, C. P. 1998. Information sources in grey literature, London; New Providence, N.J., Bowker-Saur.

Christensen, H., Griffiths, K. M. & Gulliver, A. 2008. Plenty of activity but little outcome data: A review of the "grey literature" on primary care anxiety and depression programs in Australia. *Medical Journal of Australia*, 188, S103-S106.

Hopewell, S., Mcdonald, S., Clarke, M. & Egger, M. 2007. Grey literature in meta-analyses of randomized trials of health care interventions. *Cochrane Database Systematic Reviews*, MR000010.

Tran, LT., Nicholas, T. & Degenhardt, L. 2020. Searching the grey literature to access research on illicit drug use, HIV and viral hepatitis: An update. NDARC Technical Report No. 341, Sydney: National Drug and Alcohol Research Centre, UNSW Sydney https://ndarc.med.unsw.edu.au/resource/searching-grey-literature-access-research-illicit-drug-use-hiv-and-viral-hepatitis-update Accessed 25 January 2023.

World Prison Brief. N.d. Institute for Crime & Justice Policy Research. https://www.prisonstudies.org/ Accessed 25 January 2023.